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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable Mayol and City Commission
City of Hawthorne, Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governlnental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining firnd inforrnation of the City of Flawthorne, Florida (Clty), as of and
fol the years ended September 30, 2018, and 2017, and the related notes to tlre financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial staterneltts as listed in the table of contents.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial staternents in accordance wit6
accottnting plinciples geneLally accepted in the United States of Arnerica; this ineludes the design, implementation,
and tlaitrtenatrce of internal coLrtrol relevant to the pleparation and fair prr:sentation of financial statements tlrat are
1r'ee fi'orn material misstatement, whether dLle to fi'aud or errol..

Our t'esponsibility is to expt'ess opinions on these financial statements bas;ed on our audit. We conclucted our audil
ill accordance with aLrditing standards general ly acceptecl in the Unitecl States of Arnerica and the standarcls
applicable to flnancial audits contained in Governntent Auditing Slandctrds, issLred by the Comptroller Gener.al of
the United States. Those standards lequire that we plan arrd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assnrance aboul
whether the finarrcial statentents are fi'ee fi.onr uraterial tlisstaternent.

An audit involves pelforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the arnounts and clisclosLrr.es in the financial
statelxents. 'fhe procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, inclLrding the assessrnent of the risks of
material misstatelrent of the finattcial statetnents, wlrether dr-re to fi'aud or effor. In making tlrose lisl< assessrnents,
the aLtditol considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statelnents in order to design aLrdit procedures that are appropriate in the r:ircLlrnstances, bnt not for the purpose of
expt'essing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. t\ccoLdingly, we express no such opiuiorr.
An audit also irrcludes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness ol.
significant accottrrtiug estintates lnade by marrager.nent, as well as evaluatirrg the overall presentation of the financial
statelltents.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
ooinions.

In oltr opinion, the financial statetrents referred to above plesent failly, in all rnaterial respects, the respective
financial position of the governurental activities, the bLrsiness-type activities, each major fund, and the aggfegate
remaining fund information of the City of Hawthorne, Florida, as of Septernber 30, 2018 and 2011, ind the
respective changes in financial position, and, wlrere applicable, cash flows thereol, for the year.t|en ended i1
accol'darrce with accounting priuciples generally accepted in the Unitecl States of Arrerica.

Accounting principles genelally accepted in the United States of America lequire thatthe rnanagement's discr.rssiou
and analysis and budgetary comparison inforrnation be plesented to supplernent the basic financial statements. Such
infortnation, althoLrgh not a part of the basic financial statements, is reguired by the Governrnental AccoLrnting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financia-i
statelnents in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have appliecl certain lirnited
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procedures to the lequired supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of Atnerica, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
infonlation and comparing the inforrnation fol consistency with managernent's responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during .our audit of the basic financial statements. We do
not express an opinion or plovide any assurance on the infonnation because the lirnited procedures do not provide
us with sLrfficient evidence to express an opinion ol provide any assul.ance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fonning opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City of Hawthorne, Florida's basic finarrcial statements. The introductory section is presented forpurposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial staternents are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the aLrditing plocedr.rres applied in the aLrdit ofthe basic financial
staternents and certain additional plocedures, including cornparing and reconciling such information directly to the
Lrndellying accourrting and other lecords used to prepafe the basic financial statements ol to the basic financial
statelnents thetnselves, and other additional procedr.rres in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonrnajor fund financial statements are
fairly stated in all rnatelial respects in relation to the basic financia[ statements as a whole.

The introductoLy and statistical sections lrave not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Itr accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 8,2019, on oLlr
consideratiott of the City of I-lawthorne, Florida's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
contpliance with certain provisions of laws, r'egulations, contracts, and grant agreernents and other matters. The
pLlfpose of that leport is to describe the scope of or-rl testing of irrtenral control over financial r.epoftirrg an6
compliance and the t'esults of that testing, and not to plovide an opinion ou internal control over firrancial reporting
or on compliance. l'hat report is an integral part of an aLrdit perfornted in accordance with GoverrunentALdifinA
Standards in considering the City of Hawthorne, Florida's internal control over financial reporting and compliance-.

)^^,,.*/-U , cl lr5
SEXTON & SCHNOLL

Certifi ed Publ ic Accountants

May B, 2019

a Sexton & Schnoll
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA 
              Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

September 30, 2018 

The management of the City of Hawthorne, Florida offers readers of the City’s financial statements this 
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2018.  This discussion and analysis is designed to assist the reader in focusing on 
significant financial issues, provide an overview of the City’s financial activities and identify changes 
in the City’s financial position.  It is intended to be an easily readable analysis of the City’s financial 
activities based on currently known facts, decisions or conditions. This analysis focuses on current year 
activities and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements that follow.  

 
Financial Highlights 

 The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of fiscal year 2018 by $9,074,713. 8% 
of the City's net assets represent resources that are dedicated or subject to restriction on how 
they may be used.  The balance of unrestricted net assets is ($351,799).  The City’s net assets 
are not sufficient to meet its demands for restricted net assets.  

 The City's total net assets increased $190,035 or 2.1% over the year. 
 
 95.8% of the City's net assets reflect its investment in capital assets (land, buildings, 

infrastructure, and equipment) less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets.  
The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are 
not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported 
net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be 
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate 
these liabilities.   

 Revenues from Governmental Activities increased by $519,836 from the previous year. 
General revenues from taxes increased 12.6%. 

 Business-type activities (the City’s enterprise funds) operating revenues increased by $49,604. 
Charges for services increased slightly.  

 The City’s total debt, including bonds decreased by $93,661 or 3.8% in the current fiscal year.   
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CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA 
              Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

September 30, 2018 

 

City Highlights 

 As of September 30, 2018, the unemployment rate for Alachua County was 2.9%.  The 2018 
rate for Hawthorne was 19.9%.  According to the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor 
Statistics, the State of Florida’s unemployment rate was 3.3%.  The National Unemployment 
rate was 3.7%. 

 The official population of the City according to the 2016 Census was 1,519. The estimated 
population in 2018 is 1,872 (U.S. Census 2012-2016 American Community Survey 5 – Year 
estimates). 

 
 The ad valorem tax millage rate for the City was 5.3194 mills in 2018.  

 
 The City moved into a newly renovated building for City Hall at 6875 SE 221st street with 

double the square footage for offices and an updated ADA-compliant Commission Chambers 
for meetings.  
 

 The Old City Hall has been transitioned to the Community Center with meeting space for the 
Hawthorne Life Enrichment Center Super Seniors, Community Organizations and rentals for 
events.  The office space has been available for rent. 
 

 Hawthorne Wellness Center opened January, 2018. The City-owned gym has an active 
membership, Silver Sneaker Program, yoga and children’s karate classes. 

 
 Little Orange Creek Nature Park has opened to the Public and active rentals of the building for 

events such as weddings, reunions and parties have been successful.  The City was awarded a 
recreational improvement grant for Little Orange Creek Nature Park by the Florida Department 
of Environmental Protection Recreational Development Program (FRDAP) for $50,000.  
Elements of the grant have started and a new grant has been applied for. 
 

 Hawthorne Athletic Park received the FRDAP recreational improvement grant. These 
improvements are slated to be completed in FY2018-19. An additional CDBG grant of 
$650,000 has been awarded for additional improvements at the park. 

 
 Lindsey Phillips Park also has been granted the FRDAP grant for recreation improvements. 

These improvements are slated to be completed in FY2018-19. 
 

 The City of Hawthorne was awarded a Florida Department of Economic Development CDGB 
grant for the replacement of old water lines in the historic downtown area of Hawthorne.  The 
$650,000 neighborhood development grant construction of phase I, waterline replacement was 
completed. 
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CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA 
              Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

September 30, 2018 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial 
statements. They are comprised of three components:  1) government-wide financial statements,   
2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to financial statements. The report also contains other 

 supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.  
 
The City has implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 34, Basic 
Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments. 
This statement requires governmental entities to report finances in accordance with specific guidelines. 
Among those guidelines are the components of this section dealing with management's discussion and 
analysis. Besides this Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), the report consists of 
government-wide statements, fund financial statements, and the notes to the financial statements. The 
first two statements are condensed and present a government-wide view of the City's finances.  Within 
this view, all City operations are categorized as applicable, and reported as either governmental or 
business-type activities. Governmental activities include basic services such as police, fire control, 
public works, parks and recreation, community development and general governmental administration.  
The City's water, sewer, and solid waste management services are reported as business-type activities.  
These government-wide statements are designed to be more corporate-like in that all activities are 
consolidated into a total for the City.  

Government-Wide Financial Statements  

 The Government-Wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad 
overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private sector business, in that all 
governmental and business-type activities are consolidated into columns which add up to a total 
for the primary government.  

 The Statement of Net Assets focuses on resources available for future operations. In simple 
terms, this statement presents a snap-shot view of the assets the City owns, the liabilities it 
owes and the net difference. The net difference is further separated into amounts restricted for 
specific purposes and unrestricted amounts. Governmental activities reflect capital assets 
including infrastructure and long-term liabilities. Business-type activities also include capital 
assets and long-term liabilities.  All activities are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  

 
 The Statement of Activities focuses on gross and net costs of the City's programs and the extent 

to which such programs rely upon general tax and other revenues. This statement summarizes 
and simplifies the user's analysis to determine the extent to which programs are self-supporting 
and/or subsidized by general revenues. 

 
 Government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 19 to 22. 
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CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA 
              Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

    September 30, 2018 

Fund Financial Statements  

Fund financial statements focus separately on governmental and proprietary funds. A fund is a 
grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, 
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements.  All of the funds of the City can be divided into two categories: Governmental and 
Proprietary funds.    
 
Governmental Funds 
 
Governmental fund statements follow the more traditional presentation of financial statements. The 
City has three governmental funds, the General Fund, Community Redevelopment and Capital 
Assets which are combined into a single aggregated presentation.  Unlike the government-wide 
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and 
outflows of spendable resources as well as on the balance of spendable resources available at the 
end of the fiscal year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term 
financing requirements.  
 
Governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 23 through 25. 
 
 
Proprietary Funds 
 
The City’s proprietary funds, or enterprise funds, are used to report the same functions presented as 
business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.  The City uses enterprise 
funds to account for its Water, Sanitation, Cemetery and Sewer operations.  
 
Proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 26 through 30 of this report. 
 

      Notes to Financial Statements 
 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data 
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to the financial 
statements can be found on pages 31 through 49 of this report.  

  
In addition to the basic and fund financial statements and notes, this report also presents certain 
required supplementary information concerning the City’s budget compliance.  
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CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA 
               Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

    September 30, 2018 

Statement of Net Assets 
 
The following table reflects a condensed Statement of Net Assets: 
 

 
 

  
  

The largest portion of the City’s net assets reflects its investment in capital assets ($8,697,514) such as 
land, buildings and equipment.  Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of 
related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other 
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate liabilities.  

The City uses these capital assets to provide services to the citizens:  consequently, these assets are not 
available for future spending.  An additional $728,997 represents resources that are subject to external 
restrictions on how they may be used.  

Total net assets balance increased by $190,035 or 2.1 % over the previous year.    

 
 Statement of Activities 
 
 The following schedule presents the revenues and expenses for the current and prior years: 
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Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities 2018 2017

Cash and cash equivalents 601,626$      626,569$      1,228,195$  1,300,054$      
Other assets 1,537,426     2,598,794    4,136,220   3,679,529        
Capital Assets 6,744,515     3,386,957    10,131,472 9,898,213        
Total Assets 8,883,567     6,612,320    15,495,887 14,877,796      

Other current liabilities 935,773       3,239,582    4,175,354   2,715,445        
Long term outstanding 267,579       1,978,241    2,245,820   3,277,672        
Total Liabilities 1,203,352     5,217,822    6,421,174   5,993,117        

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
     net of related debt 6,450,414     2,247,100    8,697,514   7,126,145        
Restricted 431,067       297,931      728,998     660,644          
Unrestricted 798,734       (1,150,533)   (351,799)    1,097,890        
Total net assets 7,680,215$    1,394,498$   9,074,713$  8,884,679$      

Total Government



 

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA 
               Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

September 30, 2018 
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Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities 2018 2017

Revenues:
Program revenues
    Charges for services 69,715$      862,895$     932,610$    875,822$         
    Grants and contributions 459,754      330,539       790,293     2,043,711        
General revenues
     Taxes 753,664      753,664     663,051          
     Tax increment 70,642        70,642       52,781            
     State shared revenues 51,982        51,982       54,638            
     Interest 1,267          311             1,578         2,122              
     Miscellaneous 41,439        29,965         71,404       47,738            
Total revenues 1,448,463    1,223,710   2,672,173 3,739,863        

Expenses:
     General government 579,559      -                 579,559     474,650          
     Transportation 177,646      -                 177,646     163,171          
     Economic environment 33,085        -                 33,085       86,787            
     Culture & recreation 380,111      -                 380,111     202,203          
     Interest on long-term debt 11,657        106,196       117,853     114,436          
     Cemetery (131)            (131)          (199)               
     Water 584,786       584,786     2,084,783        
     Garbage services 201,975       201,975     201,529          
     Sewer 407,255       407,255     423,173          
Total expenses 1,182,058    1,300,081   2,482,139 3,750,533        

Changes in net assets 266,405      (76,371)        190,034     (10,670)           

Beginning net assets 7,413,809    1,470,869     8,884,678   8,895,345        
Ending net assets 7,680,214$  1,394,498$   9,074,712$ 8,884,676$      

Change in Net Assets
For the Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 2018 and 2017

Total Government
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CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA 
               Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

September 30, 2018 
 
Current Year Impacts on Revenue and Expense 
 
Revenues - The City’s tax revenue was $746,686, representing an increase of 12.6% from 2017.  State 
Revenue Sharing decreased marginally by $2,656 or 4.9%. Enterprise Funds services revenue decreased 
by $1,585,859, due to fewer grants. Total City revenues decreased $1,067,690, or 28.5 % compared to 
2017 due, primarily, to receipt of fewer grants.  
Expenses - Governmental activities expenses decreased by $250,998 (27.0%), while enterprise fund 
activity expenses decreased by $1,519,389 (53.9%). 
 
 
Capital Assets  

 
 
 
 
The City’s net investment in capital assets for the governmental activities increased by $233,258 or 
2.4% from the prior year. The City added $546,035 of assets. Depreciation expense was $312,777, an 
increase of 8.3% from the prior year. 
 
 
Long-term Debt 
 
At the end of the fiscal year, the City had total debt outstanding in bonds and notes payable of 
$2,384,075, which is a decrease of $93,661 from the previous year. 
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2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Land 4,657,916$   4,657,916$ 114,300$      114,300$    4,772,216$   4,772,216$   

Buildings 1,322,481     1,021,625   5,009,936     4,998,574   6,332,417     6,020,199

Improvements 1,760,366     1,760,366   5,594,098     5,588,896   7,354,464     7,349,263

Equipment 393,904        218,408      193,945        140,825      587,848        359,233

Subtotal 8,134,667     7,658,314   10,912,279   10,842,595 19,046,945   18,500,910   

Accumulated depreciation (1,390,152)    (1,296,077)  (7,525,322)    (7,306,620)  (8,915,474)    (8,602,697)    

Capital assets, net 6,744,515$   6,362,238$ 3,386,957$   3,535,975$ 10,131,471$ 9,898,213$   

Capital Assets at September 30, 2018 and 2017

Governmental Business-type

Activities  Activities Total 
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CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA 
               Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

     September 30, 2018 
 

 
 
 
 
More detailed information on the City’s long-term liabilities is presented in the notes to the financial 
statements.  
 
Budgetary Highlights 
 
The City’s FY budget for 2017-18 was adopted in September, 2017. There were no other changes to the 
FY 2017-18 budget.  A comparison to actual results can be reviewed in supplementary information 
beginning on page 52. 

 
Financial Contact 

 The City’s financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayers, customers, 
 investors and creditors) with a general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s 
 accountability.  If you have any questions about the report or need additional financial information, 
 please contact the City Manager at P.O. Box 1270, Hawthorne, Florida 32640. 
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2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
USDA bonds -             -             2,003,800  2,073,300  2,003,800  2,073,300   
Loans Payable 294,100   280,673   86,175       123,763     380,275     404,436      
Total bonds and notes 294,100$ 280,673$ 2,089,975$ 2,197,063$ 2,384,075$ 2,477,736$  

Debt Outstanding at September 30, 2018 and 2017

Governmental Business-type
Activities  Activities Total 
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Governmental Business-type 2018 2017

Activities Activities TOTAL TOTAL

ASSETS

Current Assets:

   Cash and cash equivalents 170,560$      328,638$        499,198$         639,412           

   Accounts receivable, net 63,453          69,198            132,651           694,661           

   Due from other funds -                    2,527,006       2,527,006        1,727,891        

   Due from other governmental unit 293,001        -                      293,001           46,132             

Total Current Assets 527,014        2,924,842       3,451,856        3,108,096        

Restricted assets:

   Cash 431,067        297,931          728,997           660,641           

Total Restricted Assets 431,067        297,931          728,997           660,641           

Non-current assets:

   Due from other funds 1,168,052     -                      1,168,052        1,187,698        

   Bond costs, net -                    2,591              2,591               3,001               

   Prepaid Expenses 12,919          -                      12,919             20,147             

Capital assets, net 6,744,515     3,386,956       10,131,471      9,898,213        

Total non-current assets 7,925,486     3,389,547       11,315,033      11,109,058      

Total assets 8,883,567     6,612,319       15,495,886      14,877,796      

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities (payable from 

current assets):

   Accounts payable 128,803        35,368            164,171           418,271           

   Due to other funds 718,132        1,808,874       2,527,006        1,727,891        

   Deferred Revenue 2,623            9,004              11,627             13,933             

   Line of credit -                    -                       294,332           

   Loans payable-current portion 26,521          38,734            65,255             37,588             

   Accrued wages  57,343          9,920              67,263             58,033             

Total current liabilities (payable from 

current assets) 933,422        1,901,900       2,835,322        2,550,047        

Current liabilities (payable from 

restricted assets):

   Accrued interest payable -                  7,905              7,905               7,905               

   Deposits 2,350            88,725            91,075             87,993             

   Bonds payable-current portion -                  73,000            73,000             69,500             

Total current liabilities (payable from 

restricted assets) 2,350            169,630          171,980           165,398           

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
September 30, 2018
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Governmental Business-type 2018 2017

Activities Activities TOTAL TOTAL

Non-current liabilities:

   Loans payable 267,579        47,441            315,020           86,175             

   Due to other funds -                    1,168,052       1,168,052        1,187,698        

   Bonds payable -                    1,930,800       1,930,800        2,003,800        

Total long-term liabilities 267,579        3,146,293       3,413,872        3,277,673        

Total liabilities 1,203,352     5,217,823       6,421,175        5,993,119        

NET ASSETS

   Invested in capital assets,

            net of related debt 6,450,414     2,247,100       8,697,514        7,126,145        

   Restricted net assets 431,067        297,931          728,998           660,643           

   Unrestricted net assets 798,734        (1,150,535)     (351,801)          1,097,890        

Total net assets 7,680,215$   1,394,496$     9,074,711$      8,884,678$      

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
September 30, 2018

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA
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Charges for Operating Grants Capital Grants Governmental Business 

Functions / Programs Expenses Services and Contributions and Contributions Activities Activities Total 2017

Governmental Activities

   General government 579,559$      45,586$        459,754$            (74,219)         -$                    (74,219)$            (357,854)      

   Public safety -                   -                         -                       -                    -                      -                         -                   

   Transportation 177,646        24,127          -                         -                       (153,519)       -                      (153,519)            (139,726)      

   Economic environment 33,085          -                    -                         -                       (33,085)         -                      (33,085)              (86,787)        

   Culture & recreation 380,110        -                    -                         (380,110)       -                      (380,110)            (202,203)      

   Interest on long-term debt 11,657          -                    -                         -                       (11,657)         -                      (11,657)              (4,249)          

Total governmental activities 1,182,057     69,713          459,754              -                       (652,589)       -                      (652,589)            (790,818)      

Business Activities

   Cemetery (131)             -                    -                         -                       -                    131                 131                    399              

   Water utility 585,038        276,094        330,539              -                    21,594             21,594               126,957        

   Garbage services 201,975        227,230        -                         -                       -                    25,255             25,255               20,633          

   Sewer utility 407,005        359,325        -                         -                    (47,681)           (47,681)              (77,982)        

   Interest on long-term debt 106,196        246               -                         -                       -                    (105,950)         (105,950)            (110,187)      

Total business activities 1,300,083     862,895        330,539              -                       -                    (106,650)         (106,650)            (40,180)        
Total Government 2,482,140$   932,608$      790,293$            -$                     (652,589)$     (106,650)$       (759,238)$          (830,998)$    

CONTINUED

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Years Ended September 30, 2018 and 2017

Program Net Revenue (Expense) and Changes in Net Assets
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Governmental Business Total 2017

General Revenues

   Property taxes 391,764        -                      391,764             370,127        

   Sales and use taxes 261,497        -                      261,497             203,263        

   Utility services tax 87,733          -                      87,733               79,481          

   Communications surtax 5,692            -                      5,692                 5,646           

   Licenses and permits 6,978            -                      6,978                 4,534           

   State shared revenues 51,982          -                      51,982               54,638          

   Tax increment 70,642          -                      70,642               52,781          

   Interest 1,267            311                 1,578                 2,122           

   Miscellaneous 41,439          29,965             71,404               47,739          

Total general revenue 918,994        30,276             949,270             820,331        

Change in net assets 266,406        (76,371)           190,035             (10,666)        

Net assets, beginning of year 7,413,809      1,470,869        8,884,678          8,895,344     

Net assets, end of year 7,680,215$    1,394,498$      9,074,713$        8,884,678$   

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (Continued)
For the Years Ended September 30, 2018 and 2017
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2018 2017

ASSETS

   Cash 601,626$                  608,134$                 

   Accounts receivable 63,454                      33,070                     

   Due from other funds 1,168,052                 1,187,698                

   Due from other governmental units 293,001                    46,132                     

   Prepaid expenses 12,919                      19,082                     

Total assets 2,139,052                 1,894,116                

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES

   Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 131,153                    97,307                     

   Due to other funds 718,132                    692,560                   
   Notes Payable 294,100                    -                               

   Deferred Revenue 2,623                        3,694                       

   Accrued compensation 57,344                      48,984                     

Total Liabilities 1,203,352                 842,544                   

FUND BALANCES

  Restricted:

     Reserved Little Orange Creek 35,250                      23,022                     

     Reserved Downtown development 344,604                    245,943                   

     Reserved Wild Spaces Public Spaces 51,214                      116,928                   
     Interfund receivable 1,168,052                 1,187,698                

   Unrestricted: (663,419)                   (522,020)                  

Total fund balances 935,701                    1,051,571                

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 2,139,052$               1,894,116$              

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Assets

Fund balance-Governmental Funds 935,700$                  1,051,571$              

Amount reported for governmental activities in the 

statement of net assets are different because:

   Capital assets used in governmental activities are not

   financial resources and therefore are not reported 6,744,515                 6,140,991                

   in the governmental funds.

Net assets of governmental activities 7,680,215$               7,192,562$              

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA

GOVERNMENTAL FUND
BALANCE SHEET

September 30, 2018 and 2017
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2018 2017

REVENUE

   Taxes 746,686$                      663,052$                   

   Intergovernmental revenue 122,624                        107,419                     

   Charges for services 69,660                          36,800                       

   Other revenue 509,438                        121,302                     

Total Revenue 1,448,408                     928,572                     

EXPENDITURES

Current Expenditures

   General government 564,051                        466,089                     

   Transportation 149,044                        134,568                     

   Economic environment 33,085                          86,787                       

   Culture/recreation 341,802                        167,670                     

   Capital outlay/(disposals) 476,352                        297,191                     

Total expenditures 1,564,334                     1,152,305                  

Excess of revenues over expenditures (115,926)                      (223,733)                   

Net changes in fund balances (115,926)                      (223,733)                   

Fund balances, beginning of year 1,051,572                     1,275,305                  

Fund balances, end of year 935,646$                      1,051,572$                

For the Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 2018 and 2017

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA

GOVERNMENTAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
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2018 2017

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (115,926)$     (233,733)$    

   Amount reported for governmental activities in the 

   statement of activities is different because:

     Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures.

     However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those 

     assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as

          Capital purchase expenditure 476,352    

          Less current year depreciation (94,075)     

382,277        221,246       

   Repayments of loan principal are expenditures in the 

   governmental funds but the repayment reduces long-term 

   liabilities in the statement of net assets.

         Principal payments on long-term debt 22,573          4,327           

   Some expenses reported in the statement of activities 

   do not require the use of current financial resources

   and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 

   in governmental funds

   

        Compensated Absences (22,517)         (4,327)          

Change in net assets of governmental activities 266,406$      (2,487)$        

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TO  THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 2018 and 2017
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ASSETS Cemetery Water Solid Waste Sewer Totals 2017
Current assets
   Cash 47,446$        146,081$         74,813            60,299$          328,639$          417,172$          
   Accounts receivable (net of -                    14,552             20,338            34,309            69,199              661,591            
   allowance for uncollectible)
   Due from other funds -                    1,667,190        360,013          499,803          2,527,006         1,727,891         
Restricted assets -                        -                        
   Cash -                    254,993           -                      42,938            297,931            274,748            
Fixed assets -                        -                        
   Land -                    -                       -                      114,300          114,300            114,300            
   Buildings -                    1,554,798        -                      3,443,776       4,998,574         4,998,574         
   Improvements other than buildings -                    269,648           -                      5,333,512       5,603,160         5,586,596         
   Equipment -                    14,630             -                      181,616          196,246            143,125            
   Construction in progress -                    -                       -                      -                      -                        -                        
   Allowance for depreciation -                    (1,189,118)       -                      (6,336,204)     (7,525,322)       (7,306,620)        
Other assets
   Bond costs -                    -                       -                      12,295            12,295              12,295               
   Accumulated amortization-bond costs -                    -                       -                      (9,704)            (9,704)               (9,294)               
   Prepaid Expenses -                    -                       -                      -                      -                        1,065                 
Total assets 47,446          2,732,774        455,164          3,376,937       6,612,321         6,621,442         

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities
   Due to other funds 31,485          1,730,469        300,981          913,991          2,976,926         1,035,331         
   Accounts Payable 2,901               18,666            13,801            35,368              323,104            
Current liabilities payable from -                        -                        
   Restricted funds -                        -                        
   Accrued interest payable -                    2,996               -                      4,909              7,905                7,905                 
   Deposits -                    88,725             -                      -                      88,725              85,852               
   Loan payable M&S Bank-current -                    -                      -                        -                        
   Loan payable FDOT-current -                    -                       -                        -                        
   Loan payable CRA-current -                    19,983             19,983              19,391               
   Loan payable CRA-current -                        -                        
   Loan payable NRWA-current -                    18,751             18,751              18,198               
  Line of Credit -                       -                        294,332            
   Serial bonds payable-current -                    15,000             15,000              14,200               
   Bonds payable FMHA-current -                    58,000            58,000              55,300               
   Deferred Revenue -                    -                       -                      9,004              9,004                10,239               
   Accrued wages and compensation -                    1,562               554                 7,802              9,918                9,049                 
Long-term liabilities -                        -                        
   Loan payable M&S Bank -                    -                      -                        -                        
   Loan payable FDOT -                    -                       -                        -                        
   Loan payable CRA -                    6,758               6,758                26,741               
   Loan payable CRA -                        -                        
   Loan payable NRWA -                    40,683             40,683              59,434               
   Serial bonds payable -                    237,000           237,000            252,000            
   Bonds payable FMHA -                    -                       -                      1,693,800       1,693,800         1,751,800         
   Due to other funds -                        1,187,698         
Total Liabilities 31,485          2,164,828        320,201          2,701,306       5,217,820         5,150,572         

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, 
   net of related debt -                    311,783           -                      1,935,317       2,247,100         1,044,580         
Restricted -                    254,993           -                      42,938            297,931            274,748            
Unrestricted 15,961          1,170               134,963          (1,302,623)     (1,150,531)       151,542            

Total net assets 15,961          567,946           134,963          675,632          1,394,500         1,470,870         

Total liabilities and net assets 47,446$        2,732,774$      455,164$        3,376,937$     6,612,321$       6,621,442$       

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
 STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

September 30, 2018
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Cemetery Water Solid Waste Sewer Totals 2017

OPERATING REVENUES

Utility revenue

   Sales -$                274,994$       227,230$   356,146$          858,370$         839,022$      

   Reconnection fees -                  1,100             -                 -                   1,100               -                    

   Late fees -                  -                     -                 -                   -                      -                    

Total operating revenues -                  276,094         227,230     356,146            859,470           839,022        

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel 

   Regular salaries (117)            26,004           4,908         65,528              96,324             104,040        

   Payroll tax (9)                1,988             346            4,939                7,264               8,534            

   Retirement (5)                1,497             261            3,729                5,482               6,983            

   Life and health insurance -                  5,782             1,921         17,211              24,914             20,760          

   Worker's compensation -                  3,245             -                 3,786                7,031               6,172            

Total  Personnel Services (131)            38,516           7,436         95,193              141,015           146,490        

   Depreciation and amortization -                  47,386           -                 171,316            218,702           212,751        

   Accounting and auditing -                  -                     -                 -                   -                      -                    

   Contractual services -                  42,596           192,925     37,313              272,834           264,030        

   Communication -                  2,889             -                 3,259                6,148               9,366            

   Utility services -                  9,985             -                 31,851              41,836             48,369          

   Insurance -                  5,919             888            3,552                10,359             11,545          

   Repairs and maintenance 15,652           -                 30,871              46,523             64,644          

   Supplies -                  17,715           -                 16,508              34,223             37,357          

   Publications & subscriptions -                  434                -                 346                   780                  4,940            

   Other current charges -                      -                    

       and obligations -                  403,695         726            17,046              421,467           1,909,795     

Total operating expenses -                  546,271         194,539     312,062            1,052,872        2,562,796     

Total expenses (131)            584,787         201,975     407,255            1,193,887        2,709,286     

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Fiscal year Ended September 30, 2018

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
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Cemetery Water Solid Waste Sewer Totals 2017

Operating profit (loss) 131             (308,694)        25,255       (51,109)            (334,416)         (1,870,264)    

Non-operating revenues 

   Grants -                  330,539         -                 330,539           1,940,271     

   Interest on investments 247             64                  -                 -                       311                  310               

   Gain (loss) on disposal of assets -                  -                     -                 -                       -                      -                    

   Rents and royalties -                  -                     -                 30,212              30,212             29,672          

   Miscellaneous -                  -                     -                 3,179                3,179               2,017            

 Total non-operating revenues 247             330,603         -                 33,391              364,241           1,972,270     

   Debt service - interest -                  (43,231)          -                 (62,965)            (106,196)         (110,187)       

Net non-operating revenue 247             287,372         -                 (29,574)            258,045           1,862,084     

Change in net assets 379             (21,321)          25,255       (80,683)            (76,373)           (8,181)           

Net assets, beginning of year 15,582        589,268         109,706     756,315            1,470,871        1,479,051     

Net assets, end of year 15,961$      567,947$       134,961$   675,633            1,394,498$      1,470,870$   

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Fiscal year Ended September 30, 2018

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA
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Cemetery Water Solid Waste Sewer Totals 2017

Cash flows from operating activities

   Cash received from customers 868,719$          229,019$    356,827$    1,454,565$     489,171$     

   Cash payments to employees 11            (32,831)            (5,132)        (77,266)       (115,219)        (130,828)     

   Cash payments for employee benefits (5,782)              (1,920)        (17,211)       (24,913)          (20,760)       

   Cash paid to vendors (1,094,808)       (195,034)     (171,214)     (1,461,056)     (1,938,485)  

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 11            (264,702)          26,933        91,136        (146,622)        (1,600,902)  

Cash flows from capital and related 

  financing activities

   Interest paid on notes and  bonds payable -               (43,231)            -                 (62,965)       (106,196)        (110,321)     

   Principal paid on notes payable -               (37,588)            -                 -                  (37,588)          6,147           

   Principal paid on bonds payable -               (14,200)            -                 (55,300)       (69,500)          (66,100)       

Net cash provided by (used for) capital

and related financing activities -               (95,019)            -                 (118,265)     (213,284)        (170,273)     

Cash flows from non-capital financing

  activities

   State grant -               330,539            -                 -                  330,539         1,940,271    

   Loan proceeds -               -                       -                 -                  -                     -                  

   Rents and royalties -               -                       -                 30,212        30,212           29,672         

   Miscellaneous -               -                       -                 3,179          3,179             2,017           

Net cash provided by non-capital 

financing activities -               330,539            -                 33,391        363,930         1,971,960    

Cash flows from investing activities

   Net Purchases of fixed assets -               (16,563)            -                 (53,120)       (69,683)          (48,746)       

   Interest Income 247           64                    -                 -                  311                310              

Net cash provided (used) for investing activities 247           (16,499)            -                 (53,120)       (69,372)          (48,436)       

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents 258           (45,682)            26,933        (46,859)       (65,349)          152,349       

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 47,188      446,754            47,879        150,096      691,917         539,568       

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 47,446$    401,072$          74,812$      103,237$    626,568$        691,917$     

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Fiscal year Ended September 30, 2018

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
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Cemetery Water Solid Waste Sewer Totals 2017

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to 

net cash provided by operating activities

   Operating income (loss) 131           (308,695)          25,255        (51,108)       (334,416)        (1,870,264)  

Adjustments to reconcile operating income 

(loss) to net cash provided by operating

activities:

   Depreciation and amortization -               47,386              -                 171,726      219,112         213,161       

   (Increase) decrease in assets: -                     -                  

      Accounts receivable, net -               589,220            1,789          1,384          592,393         (357,219)     

      Prepaid expenses 533                  533             1,065             6,796           

      Due from other funds -               (744,713)          (301,531)     247,130      (799,114)        (151,092)     

   Increase (decrease) in liabilities: -                     -                  

     Accounts payable -               (581,368)          1,426          (2,126)         (582,068)        360,544       

      Due to other funds 10            730,160            299,609      (275,881)     753,898         202,136       

      Customer deposits payable -               2,873               -                  2,873             3,429           

     Accrued compensation (131)         (96)                   383             716             871                (5,536)         

      Accrued interest -               -                 -                     -                  

      Deferred Revenue -               -                       -                 (1,235)         (1,235)            (2,857)         

   Total adjustments (121)         43,993              1,677          142,245      187,793         269,361       

Net cash provided (used) by operating actvities 11$           (264,702)$        26,932$      91,137$      (146,623)$      (1,600,903)$ 

For the Fiscal year Ended September 30, 2018

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

September 30, 2018 

 
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

The financial statements of the City of Hawthorne (the City) have been prepared in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for governmental 
accounting and financial reporting principles. Pronouncements of the Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB) issued after November 30, 1989, are not applied in the preparation of the 
financial statements of the proprietary fund type in accordance with GASB Statement 20. The GASB 
periodically updates its codification of the existing Governmental Accounting and Financial 
Reporting Standards which, along with subsequent GASB pronouncements (Statements and 
interpretations), constitutes GAAP for governmental units.  

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) unanimously approved 
Statement 34 - Basic Financial Statement and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and 
Local Governments. As provided by GASB 34, the City has elected not to report retroactive 
infrastructure improvements in its financial statements due to the fact that its annual revenues are 
less than ten million dollars. The City has implemented all other applicable provisions of this 
Statement.  

A. Reporting Entity - The City of Hawthorne, Florida is a municipal, political subdivision of the 
State of Florida created under the provisions of Laws of Florida, Chapter 8271 (1919). Accordingly, 
it is controlled by the Florida Constitution and various Florida Statutes as well as its own local 
charter, ordinances and policies. It is governed by a City Commission of five members, all 
individually elected, who select from among themselves one member to serve as Mayor/ 
Commissioner.  

In evaluating how to define the City, for financial reporting purposes, management has considered 
all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting 
entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in GAAP. The basic, but not the only, criterion for 
including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is the governing body's ability to 
exercise oversight responsibility. The most significant manifestation of this ability is financial 
interdependency. Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility include, but 
are not limited to, the selection of governing authority, the designation of management, the ability to 
significantly influence operations, and accountability for fiscal matters. A second criterion used in 
evaluating potential component units is the scope of public service. Application of this criterion 
involves considering whether the activity benefits the government and/or its citizens, or whether the 
activity is conducted within the geographic boundaries of the government and is generally available 
to its citizens. A third criterion used to evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion 
from the reporting entity is the existence of special financing relationships, regardless of whether the 
government is able to exercise oversight responsibilities. Based upon the application of these criteria, 
management determined that the following component unit existed which should be included within 
the reporting entity.  
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CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

September 30, 2018 
 
 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

City of Hawthorne Community Redevelopment Agency - This dependent special district was 
established for the fostering of economic development within the downtown district, by City 
Ordinance 94-1. The governing board is the City Commission which also establishes the agency's 
budget. Because this component unit is part of the City's operations, it has been reported on a 
blended basis in the City's governmental financial statements.  

B. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting - The basic financial statements of the City are 
comprised of the following:  

 Government-wide financial statements  
 Fund financial statements  
 Notes to the financial statements  

Government-wide Financial Statements  

Government-wide financial statements display information about the reporting government as a 
whole, except for its fiduciary activities. These statements include separate columns for the 
governmental and business-type activities of the City. For the most part, the effect of inter-fund 
activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type 
activities, which rely, to a significant extent, on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary 
government is reported separately from any legally separate component unit for which the primary 
government is financially accountable.  

Government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and agency fund financial 
statements. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and 
liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange 
takes place. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from non-exchange 
transactions are recognized in accordance with the relevant standards.  

Program revenues include charges for services, special assessments, and payments made by parties 
outside of the reporting government's citizenry if that money is restricted to a particular program. 
Program revenues are netted with program expenses in the statement of activities to present the net 
cost of each program.  

Amounts paid to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the government-wide financial 
statements, rather than reported as expenditure. Proceeds of long-term debt are recorded as liabilities 
in the government-wide financial statements, rather than as another financing source. Amounts paid 
to reduce long-term indebtedness of the reporting government are reported as a reduction of the 
related liability, rather than as expenditures.  

As a general rule the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements. As applicable, the City also chooses to eliminate the indirect costs between 
governmental activities to avoid the "doubling up" effect.  
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CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

September 30, 2018 

 
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Fund Financial Statements  

The underlying accounting system of the City is organized and operated on the basis of separate 
funds, each of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund 
are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, 
fund equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Governmental resources are 
allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be 
spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.  

Fund financial statements for the City's governmental and proprietary funds are presented after the 
government-wide financial statements. These statements display information about major funds 
individually, and non-major funds in the aggregate for governmental and enterprise funds.  

Governmental Funds  
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon 
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are 
collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. 
For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of 
the end of the current fiscal period.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, 
as under accrual accounting. Franchise fees, licenses, sales taxes, gas taxes, operating and capital 
grants, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to 
accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items 
are considered to be measurable only when cash is received by the City.  

 
Under the current financial resources measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities 
are generally included on the balance sheet. The reported fund balance is considered to be a measure 
of available spendable resources.  Governmental funds operating statements present increases 
(revenue and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net 
current assets. Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of sources and uses of available 
spendable resources during a period.  

Any non-current portions of long-term receivables (special assessments) due to governmental funds 
are reported on their balance sheets in spite of their spending measurement focus.  

Non-current portions of other long-term receivables are offset by fund balance reserve accounts. 
Because of their spending measurement focus, expenditure recognition for governmental fund types 
excludes amounts represented by noncurrent liabilities. Since they do not affect net current assets, 
such long-term amounts are not recognized as governmental fund type expenditures or fund 
liabilities.  

 
 
 
 
 

     -33- 



 

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

September 30, 2018 

 
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Amounts expended to acquire capital assets are recorded as expenditures in the year that resources 
were expended, rather than as fund assets. The proceeds of long-term debt are recorded as another 
financing source rather than as a fund liability. However, debt service expenditures, as well as 
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when 
payment is due.  

Enterprise Funds 

The City's Cemetery, Water, Solid Waste, and Sewer Enterprise Funds are proprietary funds. In the 
fund financial statements, proprietary funds are presented using the accrual basis of accounting.  
Revenues are recognized when they are earned and expenses are recognized when the related goods 
and services are delivered. In the fund financial statements, proprietary funds are presented using the 
economic resources measurement focus. This means that all assets and all liabilities (whether current 
or noncurrent) associated with their activity are included on their balance sheets.  Proprietary fund 
type operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net assets. 
The City prepares its books and records in accordance with relevant standards. 

 
Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions 
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each 
party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies, 
taxes, and investment earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.  

Amounts paid to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the fund financial statements, 
rather than reported as expenditures. Proceeds of long-term debt are recorded as a liability in the 
fund financial statements, rather than as other financing sources. Amounts paid to reduce long-term 
indebtedness are reported as a reduction of the related liabilities, rather than as an expense.  

C. Basis of Accounting – The relevant standards set forth minimum criteria (percentage of the 
assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures, expenses of the fund category and the governmental and 
enterprise combined) for the determination of major funds. The City has applied the relevant 
standards for major fund determination.  

 Governmental Major Funds: General Fund: The General Fund is the general operating 
 fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial resources, except those required to be 
 accounted for in another fund.  

 Proprietary Major Funds: The City maintains its utility services in the following 
 Enterprise Funds, each of which is classified as a major fund:  

 
 Water Fund  
 Solid Waste Fund  
 Sewer Fund  
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CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

September 30, 2018 

 
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Non-current Governmental Assets/Liabilities: The relevant standards require non-current 
governmental assets, such as land and building, and noncurrent governmental liabilities, 
such as general obligation bonds and capital leases, be reported in the governmental 
activities column in the government-wide statement of net assets.  

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity  

Cash and Investments - Cash includes amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term money 
market investment accounts. Investments, consisting of certificates of deposit, are stated at cost 
which approximates market value.  All such deposits and investments are insured and collateralized 
as required by state law. 
 
Cash Equivalents - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all highly liquid 
debt instruments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.  As of September 30, 
2018, the City's cash consisted solely of checking, savings and money market accounts; it has no 
other cash equivalents.  
 
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - As applicable year-to-year, the City provides an allowance for 
Enterprise Fund accounts receivable that may become uncollectible.  At September 30, 2018, the 
allowance for doubtful accounts was $14,004. No other allowances for doubtful accounts are 
maintained since other fund accounts receivable are considered collectible as reported at September 
30, 2018.  
 
Receivables and Payables - Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing 
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as "interfund 
receivables/payables." Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and 
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "due to/from 
other funds." All other receivables are shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts.  Any 
receivables in excess of 180 days would comprise the trade accounts receivable allowance for 
doubtful accounts.  As of the balance sheet date, there were no such accounts.  
 
Restricted Assets - Certain net assets of the City are classified as restricted assets on the statement 
of net assets because their use is limited either by constitutional provisions or enabling legislation; or 
by restrictions imposed externally by creditors, grantors, contributions, or laws or regulations of 
other governments.  In a fund with both restricted and unrestricted assets, qualified expenses are 
considered to be paid first from restricted net assets and then from unrestricted net assets.  

Capital Assets - Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets 
(e.g., streets, bridges, rights-of-way, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental 
or business-type activities column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are 
defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of $500 or more and an estimated useful 
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CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

September 30, 2018 

 
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Capital Assets – continued 

life in excess of one year.  Except for roads and bridges constructed prior to October 1, 1981, assets 
are generally recorded at historical cost.  Roads and bridges constructed prior to October 1, 1981 are 
generally not reported.  The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of 
the asset or materially extend its useful life are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.  
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included 
as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.  Property, plant, and equipment of the City, 
as well as component units, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following 
estimated useful lives:  

       Assets            Years       
 Buildings and improvements           10-50  
 Machinery and equipment               5-12  
 Streets and related infrastructure           20-40  

Capitalization of Interest - Interest related to bond issues are capitalized during the construction 
period.  These costs are netted against applicable interest earnings on construction fund investments. 
During the current period, the City did not have any capitalized interest.  
 
Deferred Revenues - Deferred revenues reported in government-wide financial statements represent 
unearned revenues.  The deferred revenues will be recognized as revenue in the fiscal year they are 
earned in accordance with the accrual basis of accounting.  Deferred revenues reported in proprietary 
fund financial statements represent unearned revenues which are measurable but not available and, in 
accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting, are reported as deferred revenues.  
 
Accrued Compensated Absences - The City accrues accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave 
when earned by the employee.  The amount is estimated to be used in the following year.   
 
Proprietary Activity Accounting and Financial Reporting - The City prepares its books and 
records in accordance with relevant standards.  
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CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

September 30, 2018 

 
 
NOTE 2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS  

A.   Explanation of Differences between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the 
Government-wide Statement of Net Assets.  

"Total fund balances" of the City's governmental funds differs from "net assets" of governmental 
activities reported in the statement of net assets.  This difference primarily results from the long-term 
economic focus of the statement of net assets versus the current-financial-resources focus of the 
governmental fund balance sheet.  

Capital related items  

When capital assets (property, plant, equipment) that are to be used in governmental activities are 
purchased or constructed, the cost of these assets is reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 
However, the statement of net assets includes those capital assets among the assets of the City as a 
whole.  

    
 2018 2017 

  

Cost of capital assets $    8,134,667 $      7,658,315 

Accumulated depreciation    (1,390,152)        (1,296,077)      

 

Total Governmental Capital Assets $   6,744,515 $      6,632,238 
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2018 2017

Total Governmental Capital Long-Term Statement of Statement of 

 Fund Related Items Debt Transactions Net Assets Net Assets

ASSETS

   Cash 601,626$                 -$                            601,626$            608,134$             

   Accounts receivable 63,453                     -                              63,453                33,070                 

   Due from other funds 1,168,052                -                              1,168,052           1,187,698            

   Due from other governmental units 293,001                   -                              293,001              46,132                 

   Prepaid expenses 12,919                     -                              12,919                19,082                 

   Capital assets - net 6,744,515          -                              6,744,515           6,362,238            

Total assets 2,139,051                6,744,515          -                              8,883,566           8,256,355            

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES

   Accounts payable 133,831                   -                         -                              133,831              101,000               

   Due to other funds 718,132                   -                         -                              718,132              692,560               

   Accrued compensated absences 57,288                     -                         -                              57,288                48,984                 

   Notes payable- long term 294,100                   -                         -                              294,100              -                          

Total Liabilities 1,203,351                -                         -                              1,203,351           842,544               

Fund Balance - Net Assets 935,700                   6,744,515          -                              7,680,215           7,413,810            

Total liabilities and fund balance/net assets 2,139,051$              6,744,515$        -$                            8,883,566$         8,256,355$          

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A. Explanation of Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets

 September 30, 2018

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2018
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CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

September 30, 2018 

NOTE 2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS  (Continued) 

 
B.  Explanation of Differences between the Governmental Fund Operating Statements 
and the Statement of Activities  

The "net change in fund balances" for governmental funds of $ 115,926 differs from the "change in 
net assets" for governmental activities $266,406 reported in the statement of activities. The 
differences arise primarily from the long-term economic focus of the statement of activities versus 
the current financial resources focus of the governmental funds. The effect of the differences is 
illustrated below.  

Capital related items  

When capital assets that are to be used in governmental activities are purchased or constructed, the 
resources expended for those assets are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, in 
the statement of activities, the costs of those assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives and 
reported as depreciation expense. As a result, fund balances decrease by the amount of financial 
resources expended, whereas net assets decrease by the amount of depreciation expense charges for 
the year. 

   
   
    

Long-term debt transactions  

Debt proceeds are reported as "other financing sources" in the governmental fund, and have the 
effect of increasing the fund balance. Debt proceeds increase the liabilities in the state of net assets 
and do not result in an increase in net assets in the statement of activities.  

Conversely, repayment of debt principal is reported as expenditures in the governmental funds and, 
thus, has the effect of reducing fund balance because current financial resources have been used. 
However, the principal payments reduce the liabilities in the statement of net assets and do not result 
in an expense in the statement of activities.  Debt principal payments made during the fiscal year 
ending September 30, 2018 were $22,572.     

 
 Accrued compensation 
 
 The City’s employees have accrued wages payable as of September 30, 2018, in the amount of 
 $74,730.  The amount includes vacation and sick leave that has been earned but not yet used by the 
 employees. 
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Capital Outlay 476,352$ 
Depreciation expense (94,075) 
Difference  382,277$ 



2018 2017
Total Capital Long-Term Statement of Statement of 

Governmental  Fund Related Items Debt Transactions Activities Activities

REVENUES

   Taxes 746,686$                   -$                        -$                            746,686$          663,052$           

   Intergovernmental 122,624                     -                          -                              122,624            107,419             

   Charges for Services 69,660                       -                          -                              69,660              36,800               

   Miscellaneous 509,440                     -                          -                              509,440            121,302             

Total revenues 1,448,410                  -                          -                              1,448,410         928,572             

EXPENDITURES

Current Expenditures

   General government 579,504                     -                              579,504            474,650             

   Public safety -                                 -                              -                       -                         

   Transportation 177,646                     -                              177,646            163,171             

   Economic environment 33,085                       -                              33,085              86,787               

   Culture /recreation 380,111                     -                              380,111            202,203             

   Capital Outlay/(disposals) 476,352               (476,352)                 -                       -                         

Debt Service

   Principal (8,501)                        8,501                      -                       -                         

   Interest 11,657                       -                              11,657              4,249                 

Total Expenditures 1,173,501                  476,352               (467,851)                 1,182,002         931,059             

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 274,909                     (476,352)              467,851                  266,408            (2,487)                

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)  

   Transfers -                                 -                          -                              -                       -                         

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance 274,909                     (476,352)              467,851                  266,408            (2,487)                

Fund balance at beginning of year 1,076,691                  5,980,218            356,898                  7,413,807         7,416,294          

Fund balance at end of year 1,351,600$                5,503,866$          824,749$                7,680,215$       7,413,809$         

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B. Explanation of Differences Between the Government Fund Operating Statements and the Statement of Activities.  

September 30, 2018

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2018
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CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

September 30, 2018 

NOTE 3. LEGAL COMPLIANCE-BUDGETS  

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements:  

1. Prior to September 1, the City Manager develops a proposed operating budget for the fiscal 
year commencing the following October 1. The operating budget includes proposed 
expenditures and the means of financing them.  

2. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.  
3. Prior to September 30, the budget is legally enacted by the City Commission through passage 

of an ordinance.  
4. Any revision that alters the total expenditures of any fund or transfers budgeted amounts 

between departments within any fund must be approved by the City Commission.  
5. Budgets for all City funds are adopted on a basis consistent with relevant standards. Budgeted 

amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the City Commission. Individual 
amendments were not material in relation to the original appropriations which were amended. 
The budget for the fiscal year 2017-2018 was adopted by the City Commission in September, 
2017. 

 
NOTE 4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS  

Deposits: The City maintains all of its cash in checking, certificates of deposit and money market 
accounts at local banking institutions. At September 30, 2018, the carrying amount of the City’s bank 
balance was $1,228,195. These balances were covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral 
held by the City’s custodial bank which is pledged to a state trust fund that provides security for 
amounts held in excess of FDIC insurance coverage in accordance with the Florida Security for Public 
Deposits Act, Chapter 280, Florida Statutes.  

Investments: Under state law, the City is allowed to invest surplus funds in guaranteed obligations of 
the U.S. government, interest bearing accounts of financial institutions which are legally secured, and 
the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund.  At year end, there were no such investments.  

NOTE 5. PROPERTY TAX REVENUES  

Taxable values for all property are established as of January 1, which is the date of lien, for the fiscal 
year starting October 1. Property tax revenues recognized for the 2017-2018 fiscal year were levied in 
October 2017. All taxes are due and payable on November 1 or as soon as the assessment is certified 
and delivered to the Tax Collector. Discounts are allowed for early payment at the rate of 4% in 
November; 3% in December; 2% in January; and 1% in February. Taxes paid in March are without 
discount. All unpaid taxes become delinquent as of April 1. Virtually all unpaid taxes are collected via 
the sale of tax certificates on or prior to June 1; therefore, taxes receivable at fiscal year-end were an 
immaterial amount. 
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NOTE 6. CAPITAL ASSETS 

2018

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Deletions Balance

Governmental Capital assets:

   Land 4,657,916$     -$                    -$                  4,657,916$      

   Buildings 1,021,625       300,856          -                    1,322,481        

   Improvements 1,760,366       -                      -                    1,760,366        

   Equipment and vehicles 218,408          175,496          -                    393,903           

Total capital assets 7,658,315       476,352          -                    8,134,667        

Less accumulated depreciation (1,296,077)     (94,075)           -                    (1,390,151)       

Governmental Activities:
  capital assets, net 6,362,238$     382,277$        -$                  6,744,515$      

Business-type Activities:

   Land 114,300          -                      -                    114,300           

   Buildings 4,998,574       -                      -                    4,998,574        

   Improvements other than buildings 5,588,896       14,264            -                    5,603,160        

   Equipment and vehicles 140,825          55,421            -                    196,246           

Total capital assets 10,842,595     69,685            -                    10,912,280      

Less accumulated depreciation (7,306,620)     (218,702)         -                    (7,525,322)       

Business-type activities:
  capital assets, net 3,535,977$     (149,017)$       -$                  3,386,960$      

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the city as follows:

   Governmental activities: 2018

       General government 27,165             

       Public safety -                       

      Transportation 28,602             

       Culture / recreation 38,308             
Total depreciation expense-governmental activities 94,075$           

Business-type activities:

       Water utility 47,386             

       Sewer utility 171,316           
Total depreciation expense-business-type activities 218,702$         

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2018

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2018 was as follows: 
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NOTE 7.  INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES

The following is a schedule of inter-fund receivables and payables at September 30, 2018 and 2017.

2018 2017 2018 2017
Interfund Interfund Interfund Interfund

Fund Receivables Receivables Payables Payables
General 1,168,052$       1,187,698$     564,194$      537,916$            
Water 912,523            922,477         1,139,104      1,158,750           
Solid waste 60,405             58,483           -                  -                       
Sewer 516,722            490,641         923,179        931,407             
Cemetery -                   31,225          31,225               

2,657,702         2,659,298$     2,657,702$    2,659,298$         

The balance of $923,179 due to other funds from the Sewer Fund is not scheduled to be collected 
in the subsequent year and is classified as a long-term receivable. 

NOTE 8.  INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfers for the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017 consisted of the following:

2018 2017 2018 2017
Fund Transfers in Transfers in Transfers out Transfers out
General 30,000$            30,000$         30,000$        30,000$             
Water -                      -                   -                  -                       
Sewer -                      -                   -                  -                       

30,000$            30,000$         30,000$        30,000$             

Transfers from the CRA fund were made to allocate administrative services of the CRA 
by the General Fund. 



 

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

September 30, 2018 

 

NOTE 9. LONG TERM DEBT - BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES  

A. Water Revenue Bonds Payable  

Water Revenue bonds for expansion of the City's water system were sold during the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 1991, in the amount of $450,000. These bonds bear interest at the rate of 
5.875% per annum, with different denominations maturing September 1, 1997 through 2030. The 
revenues of the water system after deduction of the costs of operation and maintenance are pledged 
for payment of these bonds.  In addition to the scheduled payments of interest and principal, the City 
was required to deposit $2,990 per year into a reserve account until it reached a minimum balance of 
$29,900, which has been achieved. Future debt service of the Water Revenue Bonds, including 
interest, is as follows:  

  
 
 
  
B. Sewer Revenue Bonds Payable  

 
Sewer revenue bonds for construction of the City's sewer system were issued during the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 1994, in the total amount of $1,262,500.  These bonds bear interest at the rate 
of 5% per annum, with different denominations maturing September 1, 1997 through 2033. The 
revenues of the sewer system after deduction of the costs of operation and maintenance are pledged 
for payment of these bonds.  In addition to the scheduled payments of interest and principal, the City 
was required to deposit $7,494 per year into a reserve account until it reaches a minimum balance of 
$74,905, which has been achieved.  Future debt service and reserve requirements of the Sewer 
Revenue Bonds, including interest are as follows:  
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September 30 Principal Interest Total 
2019               15,000               14,805          29,805 
2020               15,900               13,924          29,824 
2021               16,900               12,899          29,799 
2022               17,900               11,997          29,897 
2023               18,900               10,945          29,845 

2024 - 2028             112,600               36,707        149,307 
2029 - 2030               54,800                 4,876          59,676 

 $          252,000  $         106,153 $     358,153 



 

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

September 30, 2018 

NOTE 9. LONG TERM DEBT - BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES  (Continued) 

B. Sewer Revenue Bonds Payable – Continued 
 

  
  
  
  
 C. Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2004  

On January 24, 2004, the City closed on the Water and Sewer Revenue Bond, Series 2004 in the 
amount of $1,187,300.  These bonds, sold to the U.S. Department of Agriculture, were utilized to 
fully repay the bond anticipation notes.  The bonds are payable in annual payments over 40 years at 
average payments of $65,732, including interest at 4.5%.  The bonds are payable solely from sewer 
revenues. Future debt service of the Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, including interest are as 
follows: 
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September 30 Principal Interest Total 
2019               36,000               38,840          74,840 
2020               37,800               37,040          74,840 
2021               39,600               35,150          74,750 
2022               41,700               33,170          74,870 
2023               43,800               31,085          74,885 

2024 - 2028             253,800             120,345        374,145 
2029 - 2033             324,100               50,195        374,295 

 $          776,800  $         345,825      1,122,625 

September 30 Principal Interest Total 
2019               22,000               43,875           65,875 
2020               23,000               42,885           65,885 
2021               24,000               41,850           65,850 
2022               25,000               40,770           65,770 
2023               26,000               39,645           65,645 

2024 - 2028             150,000             179,505         329,505 
2029 -2033             187,000             142,560         329,560 
2034 -2038             231,000               96,750         327,750 
2039 -2043             287,000               39,690         326,690 

 $          975,000  $         667,530  $   1,642,530 



 

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

September 30, 2018 
 

NOTE 9. LONG TERM DEBT - BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES  (Continued) 

D. Promissory Note – National Rural Water Association 

 In November, 2009, the City executed a promissory note to the National Rural Water 
 Association in the amount of $100,000. The note carries 3% interest and is payable over ten years in 
 annual installments of $11,587. The loan was made to complete the Water Tower project and its 
 leverage requirements in compliance with the Grant agreement with the State of Florida. Payments 
 commenced December 1, 2009. Future debt service of this note is as follows:  
 

 
 

  
 
 E. NRWA Revolving Loan 
  

In April of 2014, the City executed a promissory note with the National Rural Water Association for 
an amount of $75,000. The note carries an interest of 3% and is payable over a ten year term in 
annual installments of $8,690. Payments commenced in June of 2014, and future debt service of this 
revolving loan is as follows: 
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September 30 Principal Interest Total
2019 14,197              346                  14,543         

14,197$            346$                14,543$        

September 30 Principal Interest Total
2019 7,436               1,254               8,690           
2020 7,661               1,029               8,690           
2021 7,894               796                  8,691           
2022 8,134               556                  8,691           
2023 8,382               309                  8,691           
2024 5,729               65                   5,794           
Total 45,237$            4,009$             49,245$        



 

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

September 30, 2018 
 

NOTE 9. LONG TERM DEBT - BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES (Continued) 

F. Promissory Note – City of Hawthorne Community Redevelopment Agency 
 
In December, 2009, the City entered into an Interlocal Agreement in the amount of $177,000. The 
agreement carries 3% interest and is payable over ten years in annual installments of $20,510.  The 
agreement was made in order to complete the Water Tower project and its leverage requirements in 
compliance with the Grant agreement with the State of Florida. Future debt service of this agreement 
is as follows:  
 

  
 

The following is a schedule of changes in proprietary fund long-term debt for the year 
ended September 30, 2018:  

 

Debt service payments made from the governmental fund have been recorded as an intercompany  
receivable. 

  
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

   -47- 

September 30 Principal Interest Total 
2019             19,980 529            20,509          
2020               6,760 30              6,790            
Total  $         26,740 559$           27,299$        

Balance Balance Due 

September 30 September 30 Within

2017 Additions Retirements 2018 One Year

CRA Water Tower 46,132        -                (19,391)       26,741        19,983       

NRWA Loan 77,632        -                (18,198)       59,434        18,751       

Water Revenue Bonds 266,200      (14,200)       252,000       15,000       

Sewer Revenue Bonds 1,807,100   (55,300)       1,751,800    58,000       

2,197,064$  -$              (107,089)$   2,089,975$  111,734$    



 

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

September 30, 2018 

 
 

NOTE 10. LONG-TERM DEBT - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES  

A.  Line of Credit - Merchants and Southern Bank  

On September 24, 2008, the City obtained a line-of-credit from Merchants and Southern Bank for a 
maximum amount of $125,000.  The revolving line has a demand feature and requires interest 
payments monthly at a variable rate equal to the Prime interest index of the Wall Street Journal. At 
September 30, 2018, there was no outstanding balance.  

 
B.  Promissory Note – City of Hawthorne Community Redevelopment Agency  

In April, 2017, the City entered into an Interlocal Agreement with the Community Redevelopment 
Agency in the amount of $285,000.  The agreement carries 4.25% annual interest and is payable over 
fifteen years in monthly installments of $2,144.  The agreement was made in order to purchase and 
improve a new building for City Hall. 

 

 
 
 C.  Promissory Note – Logan’s Way 
 

In December 2017, the City entered into an agreement with Logan’s Way in the amount of $36,000. 
The agreement carries 5% annual interest and is payable over three years in monthly installments of 
$1,079. The agreement was made in order to purchase equipment for the wellness center. 
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September 30 Principal Interest Total 
2019             14,681 11,047        25,728          
2020             15,317 10,411        25,728          
2021             15,981 9,747          25,728          
2022             16,674 9,054          25,728          
2023             17,396 8,332          25,728          

2024 - 2028             98,966 29,674        128,639        
2029 - 2032             87,587 7,417          95,005          

Total  $       266,602  $      85,682  $      352,284 

September 30 Principal Interest Total 
2019             11,841 1,106          12,947          
2020             12,447 500            12,947          
2021               3,210 27              3,237            
Total  $         27,498  $        1,633  $        29,131 



 

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

September 30, 2018 

 
NOTE 10. LONG-TERM DEBT - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES (continued) 

The following is a schedule of changes in general long-term debt for the year ended September 30, 
2018: 
 

 
 

 
All debt service payments were budgeted and paid from General Fund revenue.          

 
NOTE 11. INCOME FROM LEASED PROPERTY  

The parcel of land acquired by the City for its sewer plant site is larger than the City presently needs 
for its sewer plant operations.  Therefore, the City has allowed two commercial entities to build radio 
towers on the site in exchange for monthly rentals of the land.  

The first lease is for a period of five years expiring February 14, 2020, with renewal options every five 
years for an additional thirty years. It provides for $416 per month, with a 5% increase every five 
years.  

The second lease is for a period of five years expiring March 31, 2021, with one renewal option for 
five years.  It provides for $1,280 per month, with a 12.5% increase with each lease renewal.  

The lessee of the second lease is permitting a third party to share its radio tower.  The City holds a 
contract with that third party whereby the City received a one-time payment of $1,500 plus $325 per 
month for as long as the third party continues its use of the radio tower. 

Assuming continuation of these leases, future minimum income is as follows: 
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Balance Balance Due 
September 30 September 30 Within

2017 Additions Retirements 2018 One Year

Note Payable 280,673      (14,071)       266,602       14,681       
Note Payable- Logan's Way -            36,000       (8,501)        27,498        11,840       

280,673$    36,000$      (22,572)$     294,100       26,521$     

Year Ending
September 30

2019 24,252
2020 24,398
2021 25,462
2022 26,422
2023 26,422

$  126,956 



 

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

September 30, 2018 

 
NOTE 12. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN  

Effective January, 2000, the City adopted a deferred compensation plan for employees who had been 
employed for at least six months. The plan is intended to provide retirement income and other deferred 
benefits to the City's employees in accordance with the provisions of Section 457 of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986.  

The City contributes 6% of the regular employee's base compensation and 10% of the compensation 
of the City Manager to the plan; in addition to amounts elected by the employees to be deferred from 
their current compensation.  For the year ended September 30, 2018, the City contributed $27,576 to 
the plan. 

The City utilizes ICMA Retirement Corporation (RC) as its plan administrator.  All contributions, 
whether from the City as employer or the City as agent for the employees, are remitted by the City to 
the ICMA Retirement Trust (the Trust) for commingled investment with the retirement contributions  
of other government employers.  It is the responsibility of RC to maintain the plan in compliance  
with the requirements for eligible deferred compensation plans under Section 457 of the Internal 
Revenue Code, and to act as investment adviser to the Trust.  It is the City's responsibility to furnish 
timely information needed by RC to fulfill its duties as plan administrator, and to remit the plan 
contributions on a timely basis to the Trust.  

 
Taxes and fees related to the Trust's activity are paid directly out of the Plan's assets.  No part of the 
corpus or income of the Trust may be reverted to the employer or be used for or diverted to any purpose 
other than the exclusive benefit of the participating employees or their beneficiaries.  

NOTE 13. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES  

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor 
agencies, principally the State and Federal governments.  Any disallowed claims, including amounts 
already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of 
expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the 
City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 
  
NOTE 14. RISK MANAGEMENT  

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; and 
injury or death on the job of all employees. These risks are primarily covered by commercial insurance 
purchased from independent third parties. Settled claims from these risks have not exceeded 
commercial or workers' compensation insurance coverage for the past three years.    

NOTE 15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

In preparing these financial statements, the City has evaluated events and transactions for potential 
recognition or disclosure through May 8, 2019, the date the financial statements were available to be 
issued. No such events were noted. 
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REVENUES

 Original 
Budgeted 
Amounts 

 Final 
Budgeted 
Amounts 

 Actual 
Amounts 

 Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive / 
(Negative) 

Taxes
   Ad valorem taxes 281,334$          281,334$        250,085         (31,249)$           
  Sales  tax - local option gas tax 140,000            140,000          141,679         1,679                
  Sales  tax - 1/2 cent tax 84,292              84,292            94,625           10,333              
  Sales Tax- local discretionary 60,000              60,000            83,981           23,981              
  Utility service taxes
    Electricity 91,318              91,318            107,612         16,294              
    Telecommunications 36,371              36,371            39,740           3,369                
    Water 22,561              22,561            23,271           710                   
Occupational tax 4,000                4,000              5,692             1,692                
Total taxes 719,876            719,876          746,686         26,810              

Licenses and permits
   Alcoholic Beverage Licenses 1,200              1,200            2,236            1,036              
   Permits 700                 700               2,075            1,375              
Total licenses and permits 1,900                1,900              4,311             2,411                

Intergovernmental revenue
   State municipal revenue sharing 52,923              52,923            70,642           17,719              
   Hawthorne Redevelopment 52,781              52,781            51,982           (799)                  
   CRA Administration 30,000              30,000            30,000           -                        
Total intergovernmental revenue 135,704            135,704          152,624         16,920              

Charges for Services
   Zoning Fees 1,550                1,550              4,993             3,443                
   Traffic signal & lighting 24,128              24,128            24,128           -                        
   LOC rentals 14,440              14,440            13,190           
   Recreation fees 50                     50                   27,348           27,298              
Total charges for services 40,168              40,168            69,660           30,741              

Fines and forfeitures
   Fine revenue/sheriff 1,500                1,500              1,992             492                   
   Code enforcement fines 500                   500                 675               175                   
Total fines and forfeitures 2,000                2,000              2,667             667                   

Miscellaneous
  Grant Revenue from FRDAP 100,000            100,000          93,932           (6,068)               
  Alachua County Grant Revenue 300,000            300,000          300,000         -                        
   Miscellaneous non-operating 2,300                2,300              78,528           76,228              
Total miscellaneous 402,300            402,300          472,460         70,160              

Total Revenues 1,301,948         1,301,948       1,448,408      147,709            

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2018

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

-52-



 Original 
Budgeted 
Amounts 

 Final 
Budgeted 
Amounts 

 Actual 
Amounts 

 Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive / 
(Negative) 

EXPENDITURES
General government
     Personnel services 359,999            359,999          396,296         36,297              
     Operating expenses 835,377            835,377          545,347         (290,030)           
     Grant Expense -                       -                     225,817         225,817            
     *Debt Service 53,636              53,636            14,653           (38,982)             
Total General Government 1,249,011         1,249,011       1,182,113      (66,899)             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
   Interfund transfers in 30,000              30,000            30,000           -                        
   Interfund transfers out (30,000)            (30,000)           (30,000)         -                        
Total other financing sources (uses) -                       -                     -                    -                        

Net change in fund balances 52,937              52,937            266,295         213,358            

Reconciling Items
   Capital expenditure (476,352)       (476,352)           
   Depreciation Expense 94,075           94,075              
Total Reconciling Items (382,277)       (382,277)           

Fund balance at beginning of year 1,238,036         1,238,036       1,051,573      

Fund balance at end of year 1,290,973$       1,290,973$     935,591$       (355,382)$         

*Debt service in budget includes principal and interest payments, while actual amounts only includes interest. 

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2018
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REVENUES

 Original 
Budgeted 
Amounts 

 Final 
Budgeted 
Amounts 

 Actual 
Amounts 

Final Budget 
Positive / 

(Negative) 
Water Fund
   Charges for Services 256,494$       256,494$        276,094$         19,600$          
   Penalties 15,789           15,789            -                      (15,789)           
   Miscellaneous revenue 801,750         801,750          330,603           (471,147)         
Total water revenues 1,074,033      1,074,033       606,697           (467,336)         

Sewer Fund
   Sales of sewer services 362,992         362,992          356,146           (6,846)             
   Septage 500                500                 3,179               2,679              
   Land Lease Rents 30,504           30,504            30,212             (292)                
Total sewer  revenues 393,996         393,996          389,537           (4,459)             

Sanitation Fund
   Sanitation income 212,531         212,531          227,230           14,699            
Total sanitation  revenues 212,531         212,531          227,230           14,699            

Cemetery Fund
   Sales 500                500                 -                      (500)                
   Interest income 500                500                 247                  (253)                
   Miscellaneous revenue 500                500                 -                      (500)                
Total cemetery  revenues 1,500             1,500              247                  (1,253)             

Total proprietary revenues 1,682,060    1,682,060     1,223,711       (458,349)       

EXPENDITURES

Water Fund
     Personnel services 46,708           46,708            38,516             8,192              
    ** Operating expenses 915,550         915,550          546,272           369,278          
     *Debt Service 103,537         103,537          43,231             60,306            
Total water expenditures 1,065,795      1,065,795       628,019           437,776          

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2018

-54-



 Original 
Budgeted 
Amounts 

 Final 
Budgeted 
Amounts 

 Actual 
Amounts 

Final Budget 
Positive / 

(Negative) 

Sewer Fund
     Personnel services 107,983         107,983          95,193             12,790            
    ** Operating expenses 158,550         158,550          312,061           (153,511)         
     *Debt Service 107,765         107,765          62,965             44,800            
Total sewer expenditures 374,298         374,298          470,219           (95,921)           

Sanitation Fund
     Personnel services 7,474             7,474              7,436               38                   
     Operating expenses 192,324         192,324          194,539           (2,215)             
Total sanitation expenditures 199,798         199,798          201,975           (2,177)             

Cemetery Fund
      Personnel services -                     -                      (131)                131                 
      Operating expenses 1,350             1,350              -                      1,350              
Total cemetery expenditures 1,350             1,350              (131)                1,481              

Total expenditures 1,641,240      1,641,240       1,300,081        341,159          

Net change in fund balances 40,819           40,819            (76,371)           (117,190)         

Fund balance at beginning of year 1,981,175      1,981,175       1,470,869        (510,306)         

Fund balance at end of year 2,021,994$    2,021,994$     1,394,498$      (627,496)$       

*Debt service in budget includes principal and interest payments, while acutal amounts include only interest
** Operating expenses include depreciation in the actual amounts, but not in the budget

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2018

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
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TNDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON TNTEIINAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND O1'l{ER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDTT Ot-

F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor
And Members of the City Commission
City of Hawthorne, Florida

We have audited, in accordance witlr the auditing standards genelally accepted in tle Urrited States of
Atret'ica ancJ the standards applicable to finaucia[ audits containecl in Governnten.t Atrditin.g Stanctq,d'
issLred by the Cornptloller Genelal of the United States, the financial staternents of the gJver.rrnental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely preserrtecl cornponent Lrnits, etriir major.funcl,
and tlte agglegate t'euainiug lund inforrralion of the City o1'llawtholne, Flor.ida, as of ancl forihe year
ended Septernber 30,20 lB, and tlre related notes to the financial staternents, which collectively cornirise
the City of l-lawthorne, Flot'ida's basic financial statements, arrd have issued onr.repoftthereon clatedMay
8,2019.

Internal Contlol over !'inancial Reporting

In planning and performing oui audit of the financial statements, we corrsiclered the City ol. Ijawthorue,
Florida's irrternal conlrol ovet'filtancial reporting (interrral control) to detennine the aLrdii pr.oceclL'es that
are appl'opriate in the cit'cutltstatrces for tlre pLtrpose o1'expressing oul opiniorrs on the finaucial statente'ts,
but not for the pLtfpose of expressing an opinion on the el'fuctiveness of the City of l-lawthor.ne, Florida,s
intet'nal control. Accoldingly, we do not expfess an opinion on the effectiveless of the City of Ilawthorne,
Irlorida's intelnal control.

A cle/iciency irt itt.lernctl conlrol exists when the design ol opelation o1'a coltrol does not allow nranagentent
or elnployees, in tlre trot'tnal coLrrse of perfornring their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
nrisstatetrelrts ott a tiniely basis. A nMterial weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of cleficiencies, in
internal contt'ol, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a lnaterial misstatement of the entity,s
flnancial statetnerrts will Itot be preverrted, or detected and collected on a tirnely basis. A signi/ic2rnt
de/icienq, is a deficiency, ol'a cotnbination of deficieucies, in internal control that is less sevele thalt tr
tnatet'ial weakttess, yet ilnpoltant enough to merit attention by those chargecl with governance.

Our considet'ation of internal contt'ol was for the limited pLrrpose clesclibecl in the first paragr.aph of this
section and was not designed to identify.all deficiencies in internal control that rnight be material
weaknesses or significant deflciencies. Given these [irnitations, during our auclit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal cotrtt'ol that we considel to be matelial weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As pprl of obtaining leasonable assurance about ' hether the City of Hawthorne, Florida's ftnancial
statements are ftee from material misstatement,.we p

required to.!e reported under Goy€rnmterlt Auditirlg

'Purpose of this Report'

The purpose of this report is solely to;describe the s

Sexton & Schnoll
Certifi ed Publ io Aibountants
May 8;2019
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Management Letter

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Commission
City of Hawthorne,, Fl orida

We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Hawthorne, Florida (the City) as of
and for the year ended Septernber 30, 2018 and have issued our report tbereon dated May 8, 2019.

We have issued our lndependent Auditor's Report and Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Pelformed in Accordance with Go\ternntent Auditing Standards, dated May 8,2019. Disclosures
in those reports and schedules, should be considered in conjunction with this managernent letter,

We conducted ottr audit in accot'dance with aLrditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, and Govern.menf Auditing Standards issLred by the Cornptroller General of the
United States. Adclitionally, or,rr audit was conducted in accordance with the pr.ovisions of Chapter
10.550, Rules oJ'lhe Auditor General, which governs the concluct of local govefnmental entity
audits perfol'med in tlre State of Florida and require that the following be addressed in this letter.:

This lettel inclttdes the following infornration, which is uot included in tlre afbrenrentioned
auditors' I'eports or schedules.

Section 10.554(lXi)l Rules oJ'the Arrditor General, requires that we determine
whether or not corrective actions have been taken to address findings and
recornrlendations made in the preceding anntral financial report. These
t'eqltiretrents are addressed in the schedule of findings that accompanies tltis letter,

Section 10,554( l)(i)2 Rules of the Auditor General, requires our aLlclit to inclLrde a
leview of the provisions of Section 218.415, F'lorida statutes, regarcling the
Investnrent of Public Funds. The city cornplied with section 219.415, Florida
Slatutes, r'egarding the investment of public funds.

Sectiorr 10.554( I )(i)3 Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the
managernent letter any recornrnendations to improve financial rnanager.nent.
Accoldingly, we recomlnend that accounting staff pay close attention to reviewing
old balances in the inter-fund accounts and mal<ing appropriate accounting
adj Lrstrnents.

Section 10.554(1)(i)4 furles o/'the Auditor General, requires that we acldress
violatiorrs of provisions of contracts or grant agreements, fr.aud, illegal acts, or
abLtse the lrave an effect on tlte determination of financial statements that is Iess
than material but rnore than inconsequential, In connection with our audit, we did
not have any suclr findirrgs.

Section 10.554( I )(i)5 Rules of lhe Attditor General, provicles that the auditor uray,
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based on professional judgment, report the following matters that have'an
inconsequential effect on financial statements, considqring both qualitativb and
qualitative factors: (1) violations of provisioqs of contracts or'gr,ant agreements,
illegal acts, or abuse, and (2) control deficiencies lhat are not significant
deficiencies, In connectign with our audit, we. did not have any such findings.

Section 10.554(lXi)6 Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or

Section 10,554(1)(i)7 (a) Rutes of the Anditor General, requires a statement to be
included as to whetlrer or not the local government entity has met one or more of
the conditions described in Section 218,503(1), Florida Statues, and identification
of the specific conditions met. The City reported no conditions desuibed in Section
21 8,503( l), Florida Statutes that result in a financlal emergen6y

Pursuantto section 10,554(1Xi)7(c) and 10;556(7) Rules of theAuditor General,
we applied frnancial condition assessment procedures. It.is fian?gement?s
responsibility to monitor the City's financial condition, and our financidl condition
assessment was baped in part on representation made by management and Jhe
review of financial information provided'to us by same.

Our audit did not disclose any further items that would be requirgd to be reporfed under the Rules
of the Auditor GQneral, Clrapter 10.554.

Our management letter is in nforrnation and use of the L?gisldtive Auditing
Committee, members of the e Florida House of Represeniatjves, th6 plorida
Auditor General, Federal an cies and applicable management, and is not
jntended to be and should not be used by anyone other than,these specified parties.

Rural Econopic and Comrnunity Development Requirements - We are providing the following
additional information relative to our examination of the frnancial staternents of the City of
Hawllrorne, Florida, for the year ended September 30, 2018, as plovided in the audit
requirements for USDA-Rural Development borrowers,

Generally accepted auditing procedules were perfonned in Jhis audit
Financial statements have been prepared on a

Internal control was evaluated and is discusse of this audit report
Accounting,r'ecords and physical control over
The accounting records of the City have been adjusted to 4gree with the audited financial
statelnents
The City's funds are in banking institutions that are Quafified Public Ddpo,sitoriqs bs
desciibed in Chapter 280 of the Florida Statues,
A summary of the city's insurance coveragg is qhown iri the annual report to USDA-Rural

I

I

I
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Developrnent.
The City iq ex-empt frorn F-ederal Income.Tax
We found nothing to indicate that financial compliance with loan agreements had not
occurred. , .

' at'oisrptember 30, 20 I 8, the City of Hawthorne had sufficient restricted cash to comply
with its Bond Covenants.

'

CONCLUSION

prqpriate officials or imployecs and hpve
vely much enjoyed the challenges and

ty,. We wish to thank Ellen Vause,,C'ity
afforded us, .

I

!

I AA Allrr)'efAJV, QAs
-(

Sexton & Schnoll
' Certified Public Accountants
May 8, 2019
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Schedule of Findings and Response 

 
 
 
To the Mayor and  
Members of the City Commission  
City of Hawthorne, Florida  

We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Hawthorne, Florida (the City) as of 
and for the year ended September 30, 2018 and have issued our report thereon dated May 8, 2019, 
which was unqualified.    

We have issued our Independent Auditor’s Report and Report on Internal Control over Financial 
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards, dated May 8, 2019.  Disclosures 
in these reports, if any, should be considered in conjunction with this management letter.    

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, and Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States.  Additionally, our audit was conducted in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 
10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, which govern the conduct of local governmental entity audits 
performed in the State of Florida and require that the following be addressed in this letter:   

Current Year Findings- Financial Statements:   

2018-1: The City has accumulated old balances in accounts receivable by counting 
income twice. By setting up a receivable and then accounting for it as revenue again 
when the monies are received, they are double booking revenues and accumulating old 
balances in the receivables schedule. 
 
Response: The City will develop procedures to regularly reconcile receivables 
schedule. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and ,. -.

Members of the City Commission '' 
,

City of Hawthorne, Florida

We havs examined the City of Hawthorne's compliaqqe with, Section 21g.415, Florida Statutbs,
vestment of the year ended September 30, 201g.
responsible iance with those requirements, Our responsibility
opinion on t e basedon our examination.

Our examination was conducted id,aceordance e
American Institute of Certified Fublic Accounta on.a
test basis, evidence about the City's cornpliance uoh
other prpcedures as we consideled necessary in
examinirtion provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our exarnination does not provide a

l. r .legaldetermjnationontheCity,scomp|ianeewithspecifiedrequiiem9ntq':

ln our opinion, the City complied, in all materialrespects, with,theaforemqntioned requirements
for the year ended September 30, 2018. .:
fhis report is intended solely forthe information and use of the City and the Auditor General,
State of Flolida, and is not'intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties. '

C PA>
Sexton & Schnol{
Certifi ed Ppblio Accountants
May 8; 2019

Afl,$
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